S K Patodia & AsSSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Vakrangee Limited,
Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vakrangee Limited (the
‘Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind
AS financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance (including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act and the rules made
thereunder including the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to
be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
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preparation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view, in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

6. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2017, its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

7. The financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these standalone Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an
unmodified opinion dated May I1, 2016 and May 30, 2015, respectively. The adjustments to
those financial statements for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of
this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016’, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

9. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
Annexure B.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2017 on
its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note No. 41
to the financial statements;

(i) The Company does not have long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, as at
March 31,2017;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company, during the year ended
March 31, 2017,

(iv) The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its standalone Ind AS financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 and these are in accordance
with the books of accounts maintained by the Company - Refer Note No. 43.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

«f;;»"r E
Arun Poddar

Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : May 30, 2017 Membership No. : 134572
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Referred to in paragraph 8 of the Independent Auditors” Report of even date to the members of Vakrangee
Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017.

i.

iii.

vi.

(a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the Management according to a phased
programme designed to cover all the items over the year which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 5 and Note 6 on fixed assets
to the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the Management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records were not material.

The Company has granted unsecured loan, to three subsidiary companies covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company has not
granted any secured or unsecured loans to firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans were not, prima facie, prejudicial to
the interest of the company.

(b) In respect of the aforesaid loans, the parties are repaying the principal amounts, as
stipulated, and are also regular in payment of interest as applicable.

(¢) In respect of the aforesaid loans, amount is not overdue for more than 90 days.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not given any loan, guarantee or security in respect of loans or made investments, as per
the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules framed there
under.

The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the

Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the
undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, and other
material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of
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customs, duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute except as below :

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Period to which | Forum where the
Statue dues ® in | the amount | dispute is pending
lakhs) relates

The Finance Act, | Service Tax 144.47 | April 2009 to | Customs, Excise and
1994 February 2013 Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal

Maharashtra Value | Maharashtra 44947 | FY 2011-12 Joint Commissioner of
Added Tax Act, | Value Added Sales Tax (Appeals)
2002 Tax

viil.

xI.

xii

xiii.

Xiv.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing
to any financial institution, bank, government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance
sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly,
provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid / provided for Managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and as per information and explanations provided to us by management all the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 , Related
Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully

or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly the provisions of
clause 3(xiv) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

b
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xv. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W
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Arun Poddar
Place : Mumbai Partner

Date : May 30, 2017 Membership. No. : 134572
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Referred to in paragraph 9(f) of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of
Vakrangee Limited on the standalone financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31,
2017.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Act

l.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Vakrangee
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
operating and understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exist, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material
misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6.

A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles. A company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that :

i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly
reflect the transaction and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ii. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and

iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has, in all material respect, an adequate internal financial
control system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For S. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

N

Arun Poddar

Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : May 30, 2017 Membership No. : 134572




Vakrangee Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31 2017
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at March 31 2017 As at March 31 2016 As at April 12015
ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
Property Plant and Equipment 5 2,861.84 13,171.66 27,181.41
Capital Work-in-Progress 5 - - 1,009.11
Investment Properties 6 8.68 8.86 9.02
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 1,924.52 281.00
(ii) Trade Receivables 8 - 93.86
(iii) Other Financial Assets 9 83.61 2,008.13 1,653.45 119.23 494.09
Income Tax Assets (Net) 10 405.63 190.35 -
Other Non - Current Assets 11 34.12 1,100.97 459.94
Total Non-current Assets 5,318.40 16,125.29 29,153.57
Current Assets
[nventories 12 44,112,07 46,447.38 13,352.59
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 13 56.30 - -
(ii) Trade Receivables 14 83,969.61 86,917.57 121,508.59
(iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 15 57,732.88 13,878.20 539.49
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 15 1,641.44 2,661.62 3,138.35
(v) Loans 16 4,066.78 5,189.69 2,932.34
(vi) Other Financial Assets 17 1,135.76 148,602.77 2,302.73 110,949.81 1,863.44 129,982.21
Current Tax Assets (Net) 18 81.55 19.07 1.31
Other Current Assets 19 28,635.06 37.633.49 30,598.50
Total Current Assets 221,431.45 195,049.75 173,934.61
TOTAL 226,749.85 211,175.04 203,088.18
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 20 5,292.32 5,291.96 5,034.82
Other Equity 21
(i) Reserves and Surplus 200,812.39 156,145.76 93,837.98
(ii) Other Reserves (54.33) (37.69) -
(iii) Money received against Share warrants 44 - 200,758.06 - 156,108.07 25,000.00 118,837.98
Total Equity 206,050.38 161,400.03 123,872.80
Liabilities
Non - Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 - 1,221.98 3,698.55
(ii) Trade Payables 23 98.89 98.89 216.62 1,438.60 157.17 3,855.72
Employee Benefit Obligations 24 231.46 178.30 117.85
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 25 - 1,288.19 4,258.20
Total Non-Current Liabilities 330.35 2,905.09 8,231.77
Current Liabilitics
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 26 14,401.89 28,275.04 29,968.80
(ii) Trade Payables 27 2,458.58 11,087.87 21,079.56
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 28 101.07 16,961.54 2,541.93 41,904.84 6,483.62 57,531.98
Other Current Liabilities 29 418.00 564.51 1,107.24
Provisions 30 386.90 3,750.64 6,839.70
Employee Benefit Obligations 31 7.76 7.27 -
Current Tax Liabilities 32 2,594.93 642.66 5,504.69
Total Current Liabilities 46,869.92 70,983.61 |
Total Liabilities (2 + 3) 20,699.47 _49,775.01 79,215.38
TOTAL 226,749.85 211,175.04 203,088.18
Significant Accounting Policies 1-4

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial stalemenis
As per our report of even date

For S. K. Patodia & Associates For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants Fr \ /t 4
Firm’'s Registration No. : 112723W | >
) o}«/ =\ yeshWNandwana
. ; Managing Director & CEO
QH)%Q)DJ DIN : 00062532
Arun Poddar
Partner
Membership No.: 134572 Dr lehlkant lﬁulnn\g}k?\/
Whole-timne Dirt
Place : Mumbai DIN : 00062638

Date : May 30, 2017



Vakrangee Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31,2017

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended March 31, 2017 For the year ended March 31, 2016
I [Income
Revenue from Operations 33 394,894.72 316,861.27
Other Income 34 1,357.29 1,203.00
Total Income 396,252.01 318,064.27
II |Expenses
Operating Expenses 35 294,780.34 230,789.38
Changes in Inventories 36 (491.55) 113.99
Employee Benefit Expenses 37 4,233.94 2,532.25
Finance Costs 38 497893 5,620.21
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 5,6 7,295.52 16,353.35
Other Expenses 39 3,485.35 2,372.57
Total Expenses 314,282.53 257,781.75
I11 (Profit Before Tax 81,969.48 60,282.52
IV |Tax Expense:
(a) Current Tax 30,954.26 24,074.91
(b) Deferred Tax _(1,279.38) (2,950.06)
29,674.88 21,124.85
V |Profit for the year 52,294.60 39,157.67
VI |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
i) Exchange difference on translation of foreign exchange - -
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss
i) Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligations (net of (16.64) (37.69)
taxes)
Other Comprehensive Income net of tax (16.64) (37.69)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 52,277.96 39,119.98
VI1| No. of equity shares for computing EPS (in lakhs) 40
(1) Basic 5,292.10 5,198.25
(2) Diluted 5,303.51 5,304.25
VHI{Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value ¥ 1/- Per Share): 40
(1) Basic (3) 9.88 7.53
(2) Diluted (3) 9.86 7.38
Significant Accounting Policies 1-4
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S. K. Patodia & Associates { orf&-on behalf of the Board of Directors x

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. : 112723W-~
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Arun Poddar )

Partner

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30,2017

Membership No.: 134572 \\\:_—ﬁf/[)
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sh Nandwana

anaging Director & CEO

: 00062532
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r. Nishikant Haggtnagarkar
Whole-time Director
DIN : 00062638

Company Secretary




Vakrangee Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2017

(Amount in Y lakhs)
Other Equity
Reserves and surplus Other reserves
. ’ Total equity
) Equity Share . _ Equity Money received | 1 iable to
Particulars Capital Securities Share Options instruments against share equity holders of
. Retained earnings | General Reserve | Oulstanding through other warrants 4
premium reserve the Company
Account comprehensive
income
Balance as at April 1, 2015 5,034.82 16,997.1¢ 71,621.42 4,585.95 633.50 - 25,000.00 123,872.80
Increase in share capital on account of conversion 250.00 } } : : B (250.00) ;
of share warrants
Increase in share capital on account of conversion
7 . . R - - R
of ESOPs A 7.14
Amount received on shares issued during the year ) 24,816.69 ) ) ) ) (24,750.00) 66.69
Transferred from Share Options Outstanding R 181.85 A R (181.85) } } }
Account
Profit for the year - - 39,157.66 - - - - 39,157.66
Dividends (including corporate dividend tax) - - (1,587.39) - - - - (1,587.39)
Transfer to General Reserve - - (3,205.73) 3,205.73 - - - -
Share-based payments (net) - - - - 7917 - - (79.17)
Remeasurement of nel defined benefit obligations . . A } . (37.69) ; (37.69)
(net of taxes)
Balance as at March 31,2016 5,291.96 41,995.65 105,985.95 7,791.68 372.48 (37.69) - 161,400,03
Increase in share capital on account of conversion ; 3 } } } } } }
of share warrants
Increase in share capital on account of conversion
of ESOPs 036 ) . ) ) . ) 036
Amount received on shares issued during the year i 689 ) ) ) ) ) 689
Transferred from Share Options Oulstanding } 729 : } 729 } } }
Accounl
Profit for the year - - 52,294.60 - - - - 52,294.60
Dividends (including corporate dividend tax) - - (7,961.60) - - - - (7,961.60)
Transfer to General Reserve - - (3,914.71) 391471 - - - -
Share-based payments (net) - - - - 326.74 - - 326.74
Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligations } : } } : (16.64) } (16.64)
(net of laxes)
Balance as at March 31, 2017 5,292.32 42,009.83 146,404.24 11,706.39 691.93 (54.33) - 206,050.38
dalone fi jal

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the

For §. K. Patodia & Associntes
Chartered Accounlants
Firm's Registration No. : 112723W

¥,

Arun Piddar
Partner
Membership No.: 134572

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2017

Dr. Nishikant Hayat&agarkar
Whole-time Director

/(_\ For & on behalf of tpe
e

Dinesh Nandwana
Managing Director & CEQ

DIN : 00062638

Yy
Darshi Shah
Company Secretary



Vakrangee Limited

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2017

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

S. Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2016

1 |Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 81,969.48 60,282.52
Profit before tax from discontinuing operations - -
Profit before tax 81,969.48 60,282.52
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,295.34 16,353.19
Depreciation of investment properties 0.17 0.17
Employee share based payment expenses 326.74 (79.18)
Net foreign exchange differences 155.66 (333.85)
Allowance for credit losses 853.96 134.89
Fair value gain on financial instrument at fair value through Profit and loss (32.88) -
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (25.45) (57.64)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (630.23) (134.89)
Gain on sale of investments (2.14) (14.62)
Finance costs 4,978.93 5,620.21
Interest income (931.38) (740.06)
Dividend income - (2.00)
Operating profit before working capital changes 93,958.20 81,028.74
Movements in assets and liabilities :
Decrease / (increase) in inventories 2,335.31 (33,094.79)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 3,028.33 33,736.04
Decrease / (increase) in loans and other financial assets 61.12 (4,202.13)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 8,998.43 (7,034.99)
Decrease / (increase) in other non-current assets 1,066.85 (641.03)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (8,747.02) (9,932.24)
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit obligations 53.65 67.72
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (3,363.74) (3,089.06)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities (146.51) (542.73)
Cash generated from operatiens 97,244.62 56,295.53
Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (29,279.75) (29,145.06)
Net cash flow from /(used in) operating activities (A) 67,964.87 27,150.46
I |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,107.57) (1,335.55)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4,752.28 136.13
Purchase of investments (12.00) (39.94)
Proceeds from sale of investments 12.15 64.61
Investment in subsidiaries (1,675.00) -
Loans of subsidiaries 1,017.14 (2,074.60)
Interest received 931.38 740.06
Dividends received - 2.00
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) 3,918.38 (2,507.29)
III |Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from issue of shares 0.36 7.14
Proceeds towards securities premium on issue of shares 6.89 66.69
Repayment of borrowings (1,221.98) (2,476.57)
Interest paid (4,978.93) (5,620.21)
Dividends paid to company's shareholders (6,614.95) (1,322.89)
Dividend Distribution Tax paid (1,346.65) (264.50)
Net cash flow from/(used in) in financing activities (C) (14,155.26) (9,610.34)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 57,727.99 15,032.83
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (0.16) (0.36)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (14,396.84) (29,429.31)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 43,330.99 (14,396.84)

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements
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Vakrangee Limited
Reconciliation of Equity as at April 1, 2015

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars As per Indian GAAP Adjustments As per Ind AS
I |ASSETS
1 |Non - Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 27,181.41 - 27,181.41
Capital Work-in-Progress 1,009.11 - 1,009.11
Investment Properties 9.02 - 9.02
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 281.00 - 281.00
(ii) Trade Receivables 93.86 - 93.86
(ii) Other Financial Assets 119.23 494,09 - 119.23 494.09
Income Tax Assets (Net) - - -
Other Non - Current Assels 459.94 - 459.94
Total Non-current Assets 29,153.57 - 29,153.57
2 [Current Assets
Inventories 13,352.59 - 13,352.59
Financial Assets
(i) Investments - - -
(i) Trade Receivables 1,22,164.09 (655.50) 1,21,508.59
(iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 539.49 - 539.49
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 3,138.35 - 3,138.35
(v) Loans 2,932.34 - 2,932.34
(vi) Other Financial Assets 1,863.44 1,30,637.71 - 1,863.44 1,29,982.21
Income Tax Assets (Net) 1.31 - 1.31
Other Current Assets 30,598.50 - 30,598.50
Total Current Assets 1,74,590.11 (655.50) 1,73,934.61
TOTAL 2,03,743.68 (655.50) 2,03,088.18
II |EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
Equity Share Capital 5,034.82 - 5,034.82
Other Equity
(i) Reserves and Surplus 93,118.10 719.88 93,837.98
(ii) Other Reserves - - -
(iii) Money received against Share warrants 25,000.00 1,18,118.10 - 25,000.00 1,18,837.98
Total Equity 1,23,152.92 719.88 1,23,872.80
2 |Liabilities
Non - Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 3,740.60 (42.05) 3,698.55
(ii) Trade Payables 157.17 3,897.77 - 157.17 3,855.72
Employee Benefit Obligations 117.85 - 117.85
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4,234.40 23.80 4,258.20
Total Non-Current Liabilities 8,250.02 (18.25) 8,231.77
3 |Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 29,968.80 - 29,968.80
(ii) Trade Payables 21,079.56 - 21,079.56
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 6,511.59 57,559.95 (27.97) 6,483.62 57,531.98
Other Current Liabilities 1,107.24 - 1,107.24
Provisions 8,345.14 (1,505.44) 6,839.70
Employee Benefit Obligations - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 5,328.41 176.29 5,504.69
Total Current Liabilities 72,340.74 (1,357.12) 70,983.61
Total Liabilities (2+3) 80,590.76 (1,375.37) 79,215.38
TOTAL 2,03,743.68 (655.50) 2,03,088.18




Vakrangee Limited

Reconciliation of Equity as at March 31, 2016

{(Amount in T lakhs)

Particulars As per Indian GAAP Adjustments As per Ind AS
1 |ASSETS
1 |Non - Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 13,171.66 - 13,171.66
Capital Work-in-Progress - - -
Investment Properties 8.86 - 8.86
Financial Assets
(i) Investments 270.94 - 270.94
(ii) Trade Receivables 965.36 - 965.36
(ii) Other Financial Assets 417.15 1,653.45 - 417.15 1,653.45
Income Tax Assets (Net) 190.35 - 190.35
Other Non - Current Assets 1,100.97 - 1,100.97
Total Non-current Assets 16,125.29 - 16,125.29
2 |Current Assets
Inventories 46,447.38 - 46,447.38
Financial Assets
(i) Investments - - -
(ii) Trade Receivables 87,707.96 (790.39) 86,917.57
(iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 13,878.20 - 13,878.20
(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 2,661.62 - 2,661.62
(v) Loans 5,189.69 - 5,189.69
(vi) Other Financial Assets 2,302.73 1,11,740.20 - 2,302.73 1,10,949.81
Income Tax Assets (Net) 19.07 - 19.07
Other Current Assets 37,633.49 - 37,633.49
Total Current Assets 1,95,840.14 (790.39) 1,95,049.75
TOTAL 2,11,965.43 (790.39) 2,11,175.04
II |EQUITY & LIABILITIES
1 |Equity
Equity Share Capital 5,291.96 - 5,291.96
Other Equity
(i) Reserves and Surplus 1,48,908.96 7,236.80 1,56,145.76
(ii) Other Reserves - (37.69) (37.69)
(iii) Money received against Share warrants - 1,48,908.96 - - 1,56,108.07
Total Equity 1,54,200.92 7,199.11 1,61,400.03
2 |Liabilities
Non - Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 1,250.00 (28.02) 1,221.98
(ii) Trade Payables 216.62 1,466.62 - 216.62 1,438.60
Employee Benefit Obligations 178.30 - 178.30
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 1,274.04 14.15 1,288.19
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,918.96 (13.87) 2,905.09
3 |Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 28,275.04 - 28,275.04
(ii) Trade Payables 11,087.87 - 11,087.87
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 2,555.96 41,918.87 (14.03) 2,541.93 41,904.84
Other Current Liabilities 564.51 - 564.51
Provisions 11,712.24 (7,961.60) 3,750.64
Employee Benefit Obligations 727 - 727
Current Tax Liabilities 642.66 - 642.66
Total Current Liabilities 54,845.55 (7,975.63) 46,869.92
Total Liabilities (2+3) 57,764.51 (7,989.51) 49,775.01
TOTAL 2,11,965.43 (790.39) 2,11,175.04




Vakrangee Limited

Reconciliation of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016

{(Amount In ¥ lakhs)

Particulars Indian GAAP Adjustments Ind AS

i |[Income

Revenue from Operations 316,861.27 - 316,861.27

Other Income 1,203.00 - 1,203.00

Total Income 318,064.27 - 318,064.27
II |Expenses

Operating Expenses 230,789.83 (0.44) 230,789.38

Changes in Inventories 113.99 - 113.99

Employee Benefit Expenses 2,535.80 (3.55) 2,532.25

Finance Costs 5,592.25 27.97 5,620.21

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 16,353.35 - 16,353.35

Other Expenses 2,241.09 131.48 2,372.57

Total Expenses 257,626.31 155.46 257,781.75
11 |Profit before tax 60,437.96 __(155.46 60,282.52
1V |Tax Expense:

(a) Current Tax 24,074.91 - 24,074.91

(b) Deferred Tax (2,960.36) 10.29 (2,950.06)

(c) Taxes of Earlier years 176.29 _(176.29) -

21,290.84 (166.00) 21,124.85

Y |Profit for the year 39,147.12 10.55 39,157.67
VI [Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss

i) Exchange difference on translation of foreign - - -

exchange

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently

to profit or loss

i) Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - (37.69) (37.69)

(net of taxes)

Other Comprehensive Income net of tax - (37.69) (37.69)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 39,147.12 ___(27.19) 39,119.98




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

Note 1 - Corporate Information

Vakrangee Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘‘the Company’’) is a public limited company
domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in
India. The registered office of the Company is located at ‘Vakrangee House’, Plot No. 66,
Marol Co-op. Indl. Estate, Off. M. V. Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra,
India. The Company’s shares are listed on two stock exchanges in India- the Bombay Stock
Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India (NSE).

The Company is engaged in providing diverse solutions, activities in e-governance and e-
commerce sector through its Vakrangee Kendra with special competencies in handling

massive, multi-state, and e-governance enrollment projects, data digitization.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
May 30, 2017.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these financial statements. These accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented by the Company unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of preparation
i. Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS”) under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

These financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 are the first financial
statements of the Company prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For all periods up to and
including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (hereinafter referred to as
'previous GAAP") used for its statutory reporting requirement in India. Refer Note 4 for an
explanation of how the transition from the previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows. The Company has
adopted the Ind AS standards in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company unless otherwise
stated or where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted.




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

ii.  Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the following

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at
fair value;

e assets held for sale- measured at fair value less cost to sell;
e defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and
e share based payments

B. Summary of significant accounting policies
i.  Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current /non-
current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

e [tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e Itisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non—current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and services offered by the Company, operating cycle
determined is 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets

and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents,

ii. Segment Reporting




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies
of the company. Segment revenue, segment expenses have been identified to segments on the
basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

iii. Foreign Currencies

The company's financial statements are presented in INR (rounded off to lakhs), which is
also the company’s functional currency.

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company in their functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting period.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items are recognized in the statement of profit or loss except

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign
currency risks

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit
or loss, respectively).

iv. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue

A




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

Sale of services

The Company recognizes revenue on accrual basis when the significant terms of the
arrangement are enforceable, services have been delivered and the collectability is reasonably
assured. The method of recognizing the revenues and costs depends on the nature of the
services rendered. Revenue is recognized when no significant uncertainty exists as to its
realization or collection. Commission income is recognized on earned basis for activities
performed in different services delivered at Vakrangee Kendra.

The Company executes the delivery in various e-governance projects at its Vakrangee
Kendra’s. Revenue for the Company accrues on successful delivery and confirmation by the
business associate involved. The Company estimates successful delivery based on past trends
and complexities involved in delivery and revenue is accounted accordingly till the
confirmation is received. Any deviation with the actual confirmation is accounted in the
period in which the actual results are known to the Company.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

e the company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the company; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

The amount recognised as revenue in its Statement of Profit and Loss is exclusive of Service
Tax and Value Added Taxes (VAT), and is net of discounts.

Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive

payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

v. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated.

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost includes
the cost of replaced part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property,
plant and equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an
asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment (excluding freehold land) are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the
company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement cost only if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and useful lives.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over the useful lives, using the
straight- line method (“SLM”). Management, based on a technical evaluation, believes that
the useful lives of the assets reflect the periods over which these assets are expected to be
used, which are as follows:




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Description of Asset Rate of—f
Depreciation

Buildings 1.67%

Computers and Printers, including Computer | 33.33%

Peripherals

Office Equipments 20.00%

Furniture & Fixtures 10.00%

Motor Vehicles 12.50%

Plant & Machinery 6.67%

Project Assets 25.00% —33.33%

(comprising of Computers and Printers, including

Computer Peripherals, Furniture and Fixtures and

Office Equipment’s)

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the items of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous
GAAP as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

vi. Taxation
Current taxes

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Current
income tax is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. The Company offsets, on a year to year basis, the current tax assets
and liabilities, where it has legally enforceable right to do so and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the profit and loss is recognised outside
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

vii. Fair Value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
o Level 2 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
. Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable

P

assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, '
ompany determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

LY



Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

viii. Investment property

Investment properties are properties that is held for long-term rentals yields or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes) or both, and that is not
occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by
the management expert.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transition to Ind AS

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment
property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed cost at the
transition date, viz., 1 April 2015,

ix. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified. =




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset ( or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset ( or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

X. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

b) Subsequent measurement
Debt Instruments at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised
cost is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. ’
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Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses in the
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
fair value through other comprehensive income is classified as fair value through profit or
loss. Debt instruments subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in
OCIL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Dividends from such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Investment in subsidiaries is carried at cost in the financial statements,

c) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the company balance sheet)
when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor reta1ﬁed< ;
Z §ub3t9 1ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

PAD
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When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises impairment loss applying the expected credit loss (ECL) model on
the financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease
receivables, trade receivables, other contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset
and financial guarantee not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 months expected credit losses.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Company applies ‘simplified approach’ permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix
which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

Financial Liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

b) Subsequent measurement

™~

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

hliabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the comapny that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Such amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

c) Derecognition

b
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same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

xi. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost on First-In-First-Out (FIFO) or net realizable value
after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

xii. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee is
classified as a finance lease.

Finance Lease as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease -
term. N
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Operating Lease as a lessee

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from leased assets are
consumed. The aggregate benefit of incentives (excluding inflationary increases) provided by
the lessor is recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

xiii. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

xiv. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

xv. Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized
and no longer at the discretion of the Company, on or before the end of the reporting period
but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

xvi. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation, legal or constructive,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

xvii. Contingent Liabilities

A contmgent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
onfirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events,
wcontrol of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is:
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The __&
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Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements. Payments in respect of such liabilities, if any are shown as advances.

xviii. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account

o The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

o Weighted average number of equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all the dilutive potential equity.

xix. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
and highly liquid time deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

xx. Employee Benefits
e  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the undiscounted amounts of the benefits expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

e  Other Long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for compensated absences (annual leave) which are not expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the related
service are presented as non-current employee benefits obligations. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the Projected Unit Credit
method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
(i.e. actuarial losses/ gains) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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The obligations are presented as current in the balance sheet if the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

e Post- employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

I.  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity
II.  Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Obligations

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering
eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is actuarially determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have a terms approximating to the terms of the obligation

The net interest cost, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets, is recognised as employee benefit
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the year in which
they arise and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as
per local regulatory authorities. The Company has no further obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution

plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

xxi. Share-based Payments

ed compensation benefits are provided to employees via Vakrangee lelted \

=
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Employee options

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of the options granted
at the date when the grant is made. The fair value of options granted under the Employee
Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (e.g., the Company’s share price)

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (
e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining employee of the entity over a
specified time period), and

¢ Including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employee
to save or holding shares for a specific period of time.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the Company
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to be vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Note 3 - Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires judgements,
estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
revenue, expenses, accompanying disclosures and the disclosures of contingent liabilities.
The estimates and associates assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These
estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future period.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and the use of
assumptions in the financial statements are as follows:

= Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most
appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant.
This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 49.
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* Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and
the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 48.

= Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments. See Note 50 for further disclosures.
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Note 4 - First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first financial
statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended on March 31, 2017, the comparative information presented in
these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and in the preparation of an
opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2015 these financial statements (the Company date
of transition).

In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet and in presenting the comparative information
for the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company has adjusted the amounts reported
previously in the financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). For the purpose of
transition from the Indian GAAP to Ind AS, the Company has applied Ind AS 101 - First
Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following
tables and notes

Exemptions on first time adoption of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 have
been described in below.

L Exemptions and exceptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS 101

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions
applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS

e Ind AS optional exemptions
i Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permits, a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying values for all of
its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of
transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at
the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities.
This exemption can also be used for Investment properties.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment,
Investment properties and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

ii. Leases
Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease.

ssment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS
s an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances
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existing at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not
material.

The Company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts / arrangements.
iii. Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

Ind AS allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments (other than equity
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements and other than held for trading)
as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) based on facts and
circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS. Other equity investments are classified as at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

The Company has not elected to apply this exemption for its equity investments (other than
equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements and other than held for
trading) to designate it as FVTPL

iv. Measurement of Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Ind AS allows entity that subsequently measures an investment in a subsidiary, joint ventures
or associate at cost, may measure such investment at cost (determined in accordance with Ind
AS 27) or deemed cost (fair value or previous GAAP carrying amount) in its separate
opening Ind AS balance sheet.

For investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries the Company has elected to apply
separate exemption available under Ind AS 101 by measuring at their previous GAAP
carrying amount cost which is the deemed cost at the date of transition to Ind AS.

¢ Ind AS mandatory exceptions
i Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be
consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after
adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date
made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimates for following items
in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous
GAAP:

- Investment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL or FVTOCI
- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

A
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ii. Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on the
facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.

IL. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash
flows. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1,2015

< in lakhs
. March 31, April 1,
Particulars Notes 2016 ;)015
Eotal Equity (shareholders’ funds) as per Previous 1,48,908.95| 1,18,118.10
AAP
Adjustments
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables 1 (790.39) (655.50)
Proposed dividend and tax on dividend 7,961.60 1,510.37
Borrowings- transaction cost adjustment 3 42.05 46.24
Prior period expense adjusted - (181.23)
Tax effects of adjustments (14.14) -
Total adjustments to equity 7,199.12 719.88
Total Equity as per Ind AS 1,56,108.07| 1,18,837.98
Reconciliations of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,2016
< in lakhs
Particulars Notes | March 31,2016 |
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 39,147.12
Adjustments
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables 1 (134.89)
Employee stock option expense recognized based on fair value 4
(55.16)
method
Borrowings- transaction cost adjustment 3 (27.98)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 5 57.64
Prior period expense adjusted 181.23
Tax effects of adjustments (10.29)
Total adjustments 10.55
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 39,157.67
Other comprehensive income 6 (37.69)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 39,119.98
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Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended March 31,
2016

T in lakhs
Previous

Particulars Notes GAAP Adjustments| Ind AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,2 24,423.20 2,727.26| 27,150.46
Net cash flow from investing activities 1,2 (432.70) (2,074.59)| (2,507.29)
Net cash flow from financing activities 1,2 | (11,121.51) 1,511.17| (9,610.34)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash| 1,2 12,861.99 2,170.84| 15,032.83
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April | 1,2,15 3,677.83| (33,107.14) | (29,429.31)
2015
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31| 1,2,15| 16,539.82| (30,936.66) | (14,396.84)
March 2016

IIL. Notes to first-time adoption
1) Trade receivables

As per Ind AS 109, the Company is required to apply expected credit loss model for
recognising the allowance for doubtful debts. As a result, the allowance for doubtful debts
increased by ¥ 134.89 lakhs as at March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015 ¥ 655.50 lakhs).
Consequently, the total equity as at March 31, 2016 decreased by I 790.39 lakhs (April 1,
2015 ¥ 655.50 lakhs) and profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 decreased by ¥ 134.89
lakhs.

2) Proposed dividend

Under the previous GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance
sheet date but before the approval of the financial statements were considered adjusting
events. Accordingly, provision for proposed dividend was recognized as a liability.

Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognized when the same is approved by the shareholders
in the general meeting. Accordingly, the liability for proposed dividend (excluding corporate
dividend tax) of X 6,614.95 lakhs as at March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015 ¥ 1,258.71 lakhs)
included under provisions has been reversed with corresponding adjustment to retained
earnings. Consequently, the total equity increased by an equivalent amount.

3) Borrowings

Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be
deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are
recognized in the profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the finance cost
by applying effective interest rate method.

Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to profit and loss as and when
incurred. Accordingly, borrowings as at March 31, 2016 have been reduced by ¥ 28.02 lakhs
(Apr 5 42.05 lakhs) with a correspondmg adjustment to retained earnings. The total
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equity increased by an equivalent amount. The profit for the year ended March 31, 2016
reduced by I 27.98 lakhs as a result of the additional interest expense.

4) Employee stock option

Under the previous GAAP, the cost of equity- settled employee shared-based plan were
recognised using the intrinsic value method.

Under Ind AS, the cost of equity settled share-based plan is recognised based on the fair
value of the options as at the grant date. Consequently, the amount recognised in share option
outstanding account increased by ¥ 109.50 lakhs as at March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015 ¥ 54.34
lakhs). The profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 decreased by T 55.16 lakhs. There is no
impact on equity.

5) Remeasurements of post- employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets,
excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit and loss for
the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 increased
57.64 lakhs. There is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2016.

6) Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in
profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income
and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit
and loss as “other comprehensive income” includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans
and fair value gains or (losses) on FVTOCI equity instruments. The concept of other
comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.
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Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

Note 6 - Investment Properties

®

(b)

©

()

(e)

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Description Amount

Gross Block

At April 1, 2015 11.73
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2016 11.73
Additions -
Disposals -
At March 31, 2017 11.73

Depreciation and Impairment

At April 1, 2015 2.71
Depreciation Charged for the year 0.17
Disposal -
At March 31, 2016 2.88
Depreciation Charged for the year 0.17
Disposal -
At March 31,2017 3.05
Net Book Value

At March 31, 2017 8.68
At March 31, 2016 8.86
At April 1, 2015 9.02

Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss for Investment property

_(Amount in X lakhs)

Particulars At 31st March 2017 At 31st March 2016

Rental income derived from investment properties 1.50 1.50
Less - Depreciation 0.17 0.17
Profit arising from investment properties before 1.33 1.33

indirect expenses

For investment property existing on April 1, 2015 i.e. its date of transition to Ind AS, the company has used India GAAP carrying value

as deemed cost.

Details of charges

The above assets have been given as first pari-passu charge security for working capital facilities availed from banks.

Fair Value

As at March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, the fair value of property is ¥ 179.59 lakhs and ¥ 122.00 lakhs respectively.




Note 7 - Investments

(Non - Current)

Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31,2016

—

As at April 1,2015 |

(2)

(b)

Unquoted
Investment carried at Cost
- Investments in Equity Instruments of Subsidiaries

96,000 Equity Shares of Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc.,
Philippines of Peso 100/- each fully paid up

(March 31, 2016 : 96,000 Equity shares, April 1,2015 :
96,000 Equity shares)

20,00,000 Equity Shares of Vakrangee Logistics Private
Limited of ¥ 10/~ each fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 : Nil shares, April 1, 2015 : Nil shares)

1,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Vakrangee Finserve Limited of
¥ 10/- each fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 : 2,50,000 Equity shares, April 1, 2015 :
2,50,000 Equity shares)

(A)

Investment carried at Fair value through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL)

- In Equity Shares
2,500 Equity Shares of CSC e-Governance Services India
Limited of T 1000/- each fully paid up

(March 31, 2016 : 2,500 Equity shares, April 1,2015 : 2,500
Equity shares)

(B)

Quoted

Investment carried at Fair value through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL)

Investments in Mutual Funds

24.9375 units of Aditya Birla Real Estate Fund -  of ¥
1,00,000/- each partly paid up ¥ 60,000/~ per unit

(March 31, 2016 : T 60,000/~ per unit, 24.9375 units, April 1,
2015 : T 60,000/ per unit, 24.9375 units)

1,20,000 units of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund
Series 7 of ¥10/- each fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 : Nil units, April 1, 2015 : Nil units)

99,990 units of Union Asset Allocation Fund - Moderate Plan
Growth of T 10/- each fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 : 99,990 units, April 1, 2015 : 99,990 units)

Nil units of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series
1 of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 : Nil units, April 1, 2015 : 2,99,990 units)

Nil units of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series
2 of T 10/- each fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 : Nil units, April 1, 2015 ; 2,00,000 units)

Nil units of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series
5 of T 10/- each fully paid up

(March 31, 2016 : 1,00,000 units, April 1, 2015 : 1,00,000
units)

4,99,990 units of Union Trigger Fund Series 2 - Regular Plan
of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up*

(March 31,2016 : 4,99,990 units, April 1, 2015 : 4,99,990
units)

3,35,077.757 units of Union Small & Midcap Fund - Regular
Plan of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up

(March 31, 2016 : 3,35,077.757 units, April 1,2015 : Nil
units)

(C)

TOTAL (A +B+C)

96.00

200.00

1,500.00

1,796.00

44.30

44.30

11,72

12.05

14.18

46.27

84.22

—_iomm

96.00

25.00

121,00

25.00

25.00

15.00

10.00

10.00

50.00

39.94

124.94

270.94

96.00

25.00

121.00

25.00

25.00

15.00

10.00

30.00

20.00

10.00

50.00

135.00

281.00



Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 84.22 124,94
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 84.22 123.38
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,840.30 146.00

* This investment has been classified as Current Investments as at March 31, 2017 and has been disclosed in Note 13.

Investment at fair value through profit and loss reflect investment in quoted and unquoted equity securities and quoted mutual fund units,
The strategic investments in subsidiaries have been 1aken a1 cost.

135.00
156.19
146.00

The fair value of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly

observable.
The fair value of quoted mutual fund units are based on quoted net asset value at the reporting date.

Note 8 - Trade Receivables

(Non Current)

(Amount in ¥ {akhs)

[ Particulars | As at March 31, 2017 [ As at March 31,2016 As at April 1,2015 ]
{Unsecured)
Considered Good - 965.36 93.86
Considered Doubtful B 44.50 44,50
- 1,009.86 138.36
Less: Allowance for credit losses - 44.50 44,50
TOTAL - 965.36 93.86

Note 9 - Other Financial Assets

(Non - Current)

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars | As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 ]
Deposits with bank
- with maturity period of more than 12 months 83.61 417.15 119.23
TOTAL T 86l T AT 119.23
* Amount held as margin money or security against 83.61 417.15 119.23

borrowings, guarantee, other commitments

Note 10 - Income Tax Assets (Net)

(Non - Current)

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars ] Asat March 31,2017 | As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 ]
- Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 405.63 190.35 -
TOTAL 405.63 190.35 -

Note 11 - Other Non-Current Assets

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars ] AsatMarch 31,2007 | As at March 31,2016 ] As at April 1, 2015 ]
Capital Advances 34.12 1,100.28 458.52
Prepaid expenses - 0.69 1.42
TOTAL 34.12 1,100.97 459.94

Note 12 - (nventories

{(Amount in T lakhs)

(a) Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31,2016 | As at April 1, 2015 ]
(i) Project Material 43,097.87 45,727.84 12,505.03
(ii) Work in Progress - - 161.83
(iii) Stock-in-Trade 1,004.75 513.20 465.36
(iv) Consumables 7.39 201.56 209.02
(v) Stores & Spares 2.06 4.78 11.35
TOTAL 44,112.07 46,447.38 13,352.59

(b) Basis of valuation of Inventories
Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on FIFO basis which is in accordance with Ind AS-2.




Note 13 - Investments

Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

(Current)
{(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
[ Particulars [ As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
(a) Quoted

Investment carried at Fair value through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL)

Investments in Mutual Funds

4,99,990 units of Unjon Trigger Fund Series 2 - Regular Plan
of T 10/- each fully paid up

(March 31, 2016 : 4,99,990 units, April 1, 2015 : 4,99,990

TOTAL

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Aggregate market valuc of quoted investments

56.30

56.30

56.30
56.30

* The above investment was classified as Non-Current Investments as at March 31,2016 and April 1, 2015 and has been disclosed in Note 7. The maturity of the said investment being due
in the financial year 2017-18, it bas been classified as current as at March 31, 2017.

Investinent at fair value through profit and loss reflect investment in quoted and unquoted equity securities and quoted mutual fund units.

The fair value of quoted mutual fund units are based on quoted net asset value at the reporting date.

Note 14 - Trade Receivables

borrowings, guarantee, other commitments

(b) For the purpose of cash flow statement

(Current)
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
(@) Particulars As at March 31,2017 [ As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015 |
(Unsecured)
Considered Good 84,760.00 86,917.57 1,21,508.59
Considered Doubtful 871.05 790.39 655.50
85,631.05 87,707.96 1,22,164.09
Less: Allowance for credit Losses 1,661.44 790.39 655.50
TOTAL 83,969.61 86,917.57 1,21,508.59
(b) Debts due from related parties
{(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015 |
(i) Subsidiaries 2,536.51 2,594.97 2,501.20
TOTAL 2,536.51 2,594.97 2,501.20
Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and terms are generally from 60 to 90 days.
Note 15 - Cash & Cash equivalents
{(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
(n)l Particulars As at March 31,2017 As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
(A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(i) Balances with Banks :
- Current Accounts 51,720.52 13,872.87 534.02
- Deposit Accounts 6,000.48 - -
(ii) Cash-in-hand 11.88 5.33 5.47
57,732.88 13,878.20 539.49
(B) Bank Balances other than above
(1) Earmarked balances in unclaimed dividend account 49.71 30,13 33.82
(ii) Fixed Deposits with maturity period of more than 3 1,591.73 2,631.49 3,104.53
months but Jess than 12 months *
TOTAL 1,641.44 2,661.62 3,138.35
* Amount held as margin money or security against 1,585.92 2,631.49 3,104.53

{Amount in T lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31,2017

As at March 31,2016

As at April 1,2015 |

(A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(i) Balances with Banks :
- Current Accounts
- Deposit Accounts
(ii) Cash-in-hand

Less : - Cash Credit

51,720.52
6,000.48
11.88
57,732.88
14,401.89
43,330.99

13.872.87
5.33
13,878.20
28,275.04
( 14,396.84)

53402
5.47
539.49
29,968.80
£29,429.3l)



Vakrangee Limited
Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

Note 16 - Loans
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 | As at April 1, 2015 |
(i) Loan to Related Parties
(Unsecured, considered good)
Dues from subsidiaries 4,056.95 5171.16 2,913.76
4,056.95 5171.16 2,913.76
(ii) Other Loans
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to others 9.83 18.53 18.58
9.83 18.53 18.58
TOTAL 4,066.78 5I189.69 2,932.34

Note 17 - Other Financial Assets

(Current)
(Amount in T lakhs)
[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 ] As at March 31, 2016 ] __AsatApril 1,2015 |
(i) Security Deposits
Security Deposit 26.54 1,161.97 1,157.64
Eamest Money Deposit 41.00 50.35 130.36
67.54 1,212.32 1,288.00
(ii) Others
Other Receivables 1,095.63 1,090.41 575.44
Less : - Provision for doubtful expenses 27.41 - -
1,068.22 1,090.41 575.44
TOTAL 1!135.76 2&02.73 1!863.44

Note 18 - Current Tax Assets (Net)
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Particulars ] As at March 31, 2017 ] As at March 31, 2016 1 As at April 1, 2015 ]
Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 81.55 19.07 1.31
TOTAL 81.55 19.07 1.31

Note 19 - Other Current Assets
{(Amount in T lakhs)

1 Particulars ] As at March 31, 2017 | AsatMarch 31,2016 ] As at April 1, 2015 ]
Advances to Vendors 28,218.87 37,553.18 30,370.68
Prepaid Expenses 235.39 56.79 199.02
Balances with statutory / revenue authorities -
- Sales Tax 48.57 23.52 15.71
- CENVAT Credit receivable 132,23 - 13.09
TOTAL 28‘635.06 37!633.49 30!598.50




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

Note 20 - Equity Share Capital

Equity share capital
(i) Authorised sh_are capital

(Amount in ¥ takhs)

Number of shares

Particulars (in lakhs) Amount

As at April 1, 2015 7,500.00 7,500.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2016 7,500.00 7,500.00
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2017 7,500.00 7,500.00

(ii) Paid up Equity share capital

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Number of shares

Particulars (in lakhs) Amount

As at April 1, 2015 5,034.82 5,034.82
Issued during the year - -
Exercise of options 7.14 7.14
Conversion of Share Warrants 250.00 250.00
As at March 31, 2016 5,291.96 5,291.96
Issued during the year - -
Exercise of options 0.36 0.36
Other movements - -
As at March 31, 2017 5,292.32 5,292.32

(iii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

As at April 1, 2015

Particulars

N““('il:fl'a‘l’;:')'““ % Holding N“"('itel'a‘l’;ss')'"“ % Holding N““(‘i‘:lel'a‘l’;ss')'ms % Holding
Vakrangee Holdings Private Limited 1,253.75 23.69% 1,253.75 23.69% 1,253.75 24.90%
NJD Capital Private Limited 649.36 12.27% 649.36 12.27% 399.36 7.93%
(Formerly known as Vakrangee Capital Private Limited) - - -
Life Insurance Corporation of India 323.20 6.11% 323.20 6.11% 333.15 6.62%
Dinesh Nandwana 297.67 5.62% 297.67 5.62% 297.67 591%

(iv) Detailed note on the terms of the rights, preferences and restrictions relating to each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends and repayment of

capital.

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par value of ¥ 1/- per share. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend
in Indian Rupees. During the year ended March 31, 2017, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to Equity Shareholders is ¥ 1.25 per share of ¥ 1/- each.

In the cvent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of Equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on May 30, 2017, has recommended dividend of ¥ 2/- per share on fully paid up equity share of ¥ 1/- each for the financial year

ended March 31, 2017, subject to members approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(v) Aggregate details for five immediately previous reporting periods for each class of shares

(No. of shares in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31, 2016

- No. of shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contracts
without payment being received in cash -

- No. of shares allotted as fuily paid by way of Bonus Shares 2,502.40
- No. of shares bought back -
- No. of shares issued on exercise of options granted under the

ESOP scheme. 37.53

2,502.40

55.66



Vakrangee Limited
Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017
Note 21 - Other Equity

(i) Reserves and surplus

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2017 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Securities Premium Reserve 42,009.83 41,995.65 16,997.11
Share Options Qutstanding Account 2,063.68 2,265.82 1,901.05
Deferred Employee Compensation Expense (1,371.75) (1,893.34) (1,267.55)
General Reserve 11,706.39 7,791.68 4,585.95
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss 146,404.24 105,985.95 71,621.42
Total ' 200,812.39 156,145.76 93,837.98
(a) Securities Premium Reserve (Amount in ¥ [akhs)
Particulars Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2017 31,2016
Opening balance 41,995.65 16,997.11
Add:- On share issued during the year 6.89 24,816.69
Add:- Transfer from shares options outstanding account 7.29 181.85
Closing balance 42,009.83 41,995.65
(b) Share Options Qutstanding Account (Amount in X lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March  Year ended March
31,2017 31,2016
Opening balance 2,265.82 1,901.05
Add:- On further grant of options - 1,065.69
Less:- Reversal due to Lapsation of option (194.85) (519.07)
Less: Transfer to Securities premium account (7.29) (181.85)
Closing balance 2,063.68 2,265.82
(c) Deferred Employce Compensation Expense (Amount in X lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March ~ Year ended March
31,2017 31,2016
Opening balance (1,893.34) (1,267.55)
Add:- On further grant of options - (1,065.69)
Less:- Reversal due to Lapsation of option 150.98 190.99
Less:- Amortised during the year 370.61 248.91
Closing balance (1,371.75) (1,893.34)
(d) General Reserve (Amount In X lakhs)
Particulars Year ended March Ycar ended March
31,2017 31,2016
Opening balance 7,791.68 4,585.95
Add:- Transfer from Profit & Loss account 3,914.71 3,205.73
Less:- Transfer to Profit & Loss account -
Closing balance 11,706.39 7,791.68
(e) Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss (Amount in X lakhs)
Particulars Ycar ended March  Year cnded March
31,2017 31,2016
Opening balance 105,985.95 71,621.42
Add:- Profit for the year 52,294.60 39,157.66
Less:- Transfer to General Reserve (3,914.71) (3,205.73)
Less:- Dividend declared (6,614.95) (1,322.89)
Less:- Corporate Dividend Tax (1,346.65) (264.50)
Closing balance 146,404.24 105,985.95 e
A NSO
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Vakrangee Limited
Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017
Note 22 - Borrowings

{Non - Current)
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars J As at March 31, 2017 | As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015 |
Secured Loans
Term Loans
- From Banks - 1,221.98 3,698.55
- From Others - - -

TOTAL - 1,221.98 3,698.55
Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans.
Term Loan from Banks (March 31, 2016 and April |, 2015) :

1. The Company had taken a term loan of ¥ 2,500.00 lakhs. The rate of interest was 11.95% p.a. The loan was 1o be repaid in 16 quarterly installments of ¥ 156.25 lakhs
starting from availability-cum-moratorium period of 15 months from the date of first disbursement (first instalment payable on 31.05.2015), thereby total tenor of the loan will

be 63 months. However, the Company has made prepayment of the loan during the year and therefore, there is no amount outstanding towards the said loan as on March 31,
2017,

2. The Company had taken a term loan in the form of External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) of USD 10 million. The borrowings were made at an interest rate equal to the
sum of LIBOR and the Margin as specified in the Tenn Loan Facility Agreement. The payment of interest to be made quarterly. The rate of interest was 3.561% p.a. The loan
was o be repaid in 12 quarterly installments starting from June 30, 2014, with first 11 instaliments in equal amounts & the amount of the last i.e. twelfth installment being the
balance of principal pending for repayment, thereby total tenor of the loan to be five years. The Company has made prepayment of the said loan during the year and therefore,
there is no amount outstanding towards the said loan as on March 31, 2017,

The Company had entered into a Cross Currency & Intcrest Rate Swap facility for hedging of the ECB repayments (principal and interest). By way of this swap facility, the rate
of interest had been fixed at 9.62% p.a. for complete tenor of the term loan. The spot reference rate for repayment of the said loan had been fixed at T 56.08 for 1 USD.

The bank had sanctioned Loan Equivalent Value (LEV) of T 649.30 lakhs under currency swap facility. Negative Mark-to-Market threshold limit for margin call had been fixed
at T 500.00 lakhs.

In case, the net payables exceed the exposure, the Bank has the right to call for additional deposit margin forthwith to maintain the exposure within the threshold limit. The
Company shall deposit cash collateral as per Bank's instructions, if negative MTM exceeds ¥ 500.00 lakhs.

Nature of security of each type of secured loans.

i) Term Loans from Banks (¥ 2500.00 lakhs) :

I. First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on micro ATM, Financial Inclusion (F1) kits and assets purchased out of the said rupee term loan.

2. First charge on the designated bank account through which all the revenues and receivables of all the FI centres will be routed.

3. First charge on the Debt Service Reserve account (DSRA) and any other bank account of the company with respect to proposed FI project.

4. Second pari-passu charge on all the present and future current assets of the Company.

5. Second pari-passu charge on the movable fixed assets of the company (present & future), except micro ATMs and other FI kits.

6. Second parri-passu charge through mortgage on the office premises of the Company, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industrial Society & Hind Saurashtra Industries Co-
Operative Society Limited, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbat.

7. Second pari-passu charge on office premise of Vakrangee Technologies Limited, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industrial Socicty, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai.

8. Second pari-passu charge on property situated at Deer Park, New Delhi.
9. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company & Corporate Guarantee of Vakrangee Technologies Limited.

ii) Term Loans from Banks - External Conunercial Borrowings (ECB) :

1. First charge on all moveable and immoveable fixed assets financed out of the term loan, with a minimum assct cover ratio of 1.33 times.
2. Second parri-passu charge on all assets of the Company excluding those financed through this term loan.

3. Second pari passu charge on the UID kits procured from existing term loans availed from banks.

4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEQ of the Company.

Details of the aggregate of each Joan guaranteed by directors or others, each head-wise.
All the term loans amounting to ¥ Nil (March 31, 2016 : ¥ 1,221.98 lakhs, April 1, 2015 : T 3,698.55 lakhs) guaranteed by Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO
of the Company.

Details of continuing default in the repayment of loans and interest, specifying the
There has been no default in the repayment of loans or interest thereon as on date.

Note 23 - Trade Payables
(Non - Current)
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 [ As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015
Trade Payables 98.89 216.62 157.17
TOTAL 98.89 216.62 157.17

* Includes dues to micro, small and medium - - -
enterprises

Note 24 - Employee Benefit Obligations
(Non - Current)
{(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

As at March 31, 2017 [ As at March 31, 2016 [ As at April 1, 2015 |

li Particulars

Provision for Employees’ benefits 231.46 178.30 117.85

231.46 178.30

) —= —= —Ru

TOTAL




Note 25 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

Vakrangee Limited

Notes to financial statements as on March 31, 2017

{Amount in T lakhs)

[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31, 2016 1 As at April 1, 2015 ]
Liabilities
(i) On account of difference in depreciation on Fixed - 1,294 .44 4,249.79
Assets
(if) Provision for Leave Encashment - - -
(i1) Timing differences on Tax Provisions - 14.15 23.80
(A) - 1,308.59 4,273.59
Assets
(i) On account of difference in depreciation on Fixed 748.55
Assets
(ii) Provision for Leave Encashment 80.10 20.40 15.39
(iti) Timing differences on Tax Provisions 14.15 - -
(B) 842.80 20.40 15.39
TOTAL (A - B) (842.80) 1,288.19 4,258.20
Add : Impact on deferred tax asset carrying value* 842.80 - -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet - 1,288.19 4,258.20

* The timing differences arising as at year-end are deferred tax assets. There are no items for which there is deferred tax liability as at year-end. Hence, on the basis of
reasonable certainty, such deferred tax assets have not been recognised and carried forward.

Note 26 - Borrowings

(Current)
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)
1 Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
Secured Loans
Loans repayable on demand
- From Banks 14,401.89 28,275.04 29,968.80
TOTAL 142401.89 28,275.04 293968.80

Nature of security of each type of secured loans,

a) Loans repayable on demand from Banks :

The Company had entered into a Security Trustce Agreement for availing the working capital facilities under the consortium banking arrangement and the limit sanctioned is
aggregating to ¥ 75,000.00 lakhs vide agreement dated June 5, 2015. Based on the operational requirements, the Company has proposed revision in working capital facilities
from ¥ 51,090.00 lakhs (as at March 31, 2016) to ¥ 33,200.00 lakhs (as at March 31, 2017). The Lead Bank vide their letter dated March 27, 2017 has approved the assessment
of working capital requirements at the reduced level of ¥ 33,200.00 lakhs.

These facilities are secured against the following charge on various assets of the Company :
1. Primary : First pari-passu charge on the entire current assets of the Company, both present & future.

2. Collateral :

- First pari-passu charge on the entire movable fixed assets of the Company, both present & future.
- First pari-passu charge on all the immovable assets of the company acquired after 31.03.2011, both present and future.
- First pari-passu charge on entire lands & office premises of the company, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industrial Estate & Hind Saurashtra Industries Co-Operative Society

Limited, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai.

- First pari-passu charge on office premises, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industrial Estate, Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai of Vakrangee Technologies Limited

- First Pari passu charge on residential house at Chandigarh.

3. Corporate Guarantee of Company, Vakrangee Technologies Limited to the extent of value of property.
4. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

b) Details of the aggregate of each loan guaranteed by directors or others, each head-wise.
All the loans repayable on demand from banks amounting to ¥ 14,401.89 lakhs (March 31,2016 : ¥ 28,275.04 lakhs, April 1, 2015 : ¥ 29,968.80 lakhs) guaranteed by Mr.
Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

¢) Details of continuing default in the repayment of loans and interest, specifying the period and amount separately in cach case.
There has been no default in the repayment of loans or interest thereon as on date.

Note 27 - Trade Payables

(Current)
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)
[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
Trade Payables* 2,458.58 11,087.87 21,079.56
TOTAL 2,458.58 11,087.87 21,079.56
* Includes dues to micro, small and medium 4292 75.59 154.69

enterprises
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Note 28 - Other Financial Liabilities
(Amount in X lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2017 | As at March 31,2016 [ As at April 1,2015 J
Current maturities of long-term debts - 2,480.29 6,259.65
Current maturities of finance lease obligations - - 18.35
interest accrued but not due on borrowings 13.26 25.28 171.80
Security Deposit 38.10 6.23 -
Unpaid Dividend 49.71 30.13 33.82
TOTAL 101.07 2,541.93 62483.62
Note 29 - Other Current Liabilities
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
| Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 ]
Withholding taxes and others 96.45 97.76 265.29
Advance from customers 246.46 170.81 320.53
Staff Emoluments Payable 16.18 252.67 232.94
Other Liabilities 58.91 43.27 288.49
TOTAL 418.00 564.51 15107.24
Note 30 - Provisions
{(Amount in T lakhs)
| Particulars As at March 31, 2017 I As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 l
Provision for Expenses for Goods & services 386.90 3,750.64 6,839.68
Provision for Wealth Tax - - 0.02
Provision for Proposed Dividend - - -
Provision for Tax on Proposed Dividend - - -
TOTAL 386.90 32750.64 6!839.70
Note 31 - Employee Benefit Obligations
(Current) (Amount in T takhs)
[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 1 As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
Provision for Employees’ benefits 7.76 7.27 -
TOTAL 71.76 7.27 -
Note 32 - Current Tax Liabilities
(Amount in T lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015 J
Provision for Taxation (net of taxes paid) 2,594.93 642.66 5,504.69
TOTAL 2!594.93 642.66 52504.69
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Note 33 - Revenue from Operations

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)
| Particulars For the year ended March 31,2017 | For the year ended March 31, 2016 J

(a) Income from e-governance activities, including Vakrangee 392,864.84 315,495.23
Kendra

(b) Revenue from Sale of Products

- Computer consumables & peripherals 413.37 64.98
413.37 64.98
(¢) Revenue from Sale of Services
- Information Technology-enabled Services (ITeS) 1,607.00 1,299.60
- Othes - -
1,607.00 1,299.60
(d) Other Operating Revenues
- Scrap Sales 9.51 1.46
9.51 1.46
TOTAL 394,894.72 316,861.27

Note:- The amount of revenues are exclusive of indirect taxes (service tax, value added tax, etc.).

Note 34 - Other Income
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars | For the year ended March 31, 2017 J For the year ended March 31, 2016 J
(i) Interest Income on
- Bank Deposits 149.92 249.20
- Loan to Subsidiary 772.00 490.86
- Others 9.46 -
931.38 740.06
(ii) Other income
- Rent Received 1.50 1.50
- Sundry Balances written back - 1.24
- Net gain on disposal of Property plant and equipment 630.23 134.89
- Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (Net) (254.86) 308.49
- Gain/(Loss) on sale of Investments (Net) 2.14 14.62
- Fair value gain on financial instrument at fair value through 32.88 -
Profit and loss
- Miscellaneous Income 14.02 220
42591 462.94
TOTAL 1,357.29 1,203.00

Note 35 - Operating Expenses
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Partieulars |~ For the year ended March 31, 2017 [ For the year ended March 31,2016 |
Project Delivery Cost
- Opening Stock 45,934.19 12,725.40
- Add : Purchase of goods and services 287,643.66 261,810.80
- Less : Closing Stock 43,107.33 45,934.19
290,470.52 228,602.01
Project Expenses 2,066.54 903.86
Commission Expenses 2,003.23 1,099.74
Printing Charges 22.86 24.80
Communication Costs 19.45 64.02
Conveyance & Travelling Expenses 67.34 42.63
Transportation, Octroi and Loading / Unloading Charges 14.33 7.07
Rent, Rates and Taxes 116.07 45.25
TOTAL 294,780.34 230,789.38
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Note 36 - Changes in Inventories

(Amount in T lakhs)

| Particulars

For the year ended March 31,2017 |

For the year ended March 31,2016 |

(a) At the beginning of the period
(i) Work-in-Progress
(ii) Stock-in-Trade

Less : at the end of the period
(i) Work-in-Progress
(ii) Stock-in-Trade
TOTAL

Note 37 - Employee Benefits Expenses

- 161.83

513.20 465.36
513.20 627.19

1,004.75 513.20
1,004.75 513.20
(491.55) 113.99

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

(a)|7 Particulars For the year ended March 31,2017 |  For the year ended March 31, 2016 H
(1) Salaries & Wages 3,627.57 2,450.00
(ii) Contribution to Provident & Other Funds 200.58 94.87
(iii) Share-based Payment Expenses 326.74 (79.18)
(iv) Staff Welfare Expenses 79.05 66.56
4,233.94 2,532.25
TOTAL 4,233.94 2,532.25

(b) Detailed note on disclosure as required by Ind AS-19
For details, refer Note No. 48.

Note 38 - Finance Costs

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars For the year ended March 31, 2017 For the year ended March 31, 2016 |
Interest Expenses
- Banks 4,524.60 5318.71
- Others 119.77 4,644 37 139.85 5,458.56
Bank Charges & Commission 334.56 161.65
TOTAL 4,978.93 5,620.21
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Note 39 - Other Expenses

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars | For the year ended March 31,2017 |  For the year ended March 31,2016 |
Repairs & Maintenance :
- Building 39.06 51.64
- Vehicle 3.68 1.97
- Others 21.55 64.29 34.39 88.00
Advertisement and Publicity Expenses 342.08 24430
Business Promotion Expenses 257.14 85.61
Sponsorship Fees 108.00 28.73
Commission & Brokerage 1.71 0.65
Rates & Taxes 24.35 63.72
Insurance 16.04 17.57
Electricity Expenses 50.28 4429
Printing and Stationery 32.80 35.53
Communication Costs 160.75 109.35
Fees & Subscriptions 29.66 3248
Listing, Registrar & Share Issue/Transfer Expenses 39.26 5.04
Directors' Remuneration 211.98 95.85
Directors' Sitting Fees 5.75 6.70
Legal & Professional Fees - Other than payments to Auditor:
- Consultancy Charges 30.84 73.16
- Legal & Professional Fees 661.02 649.17
- Filing Stamp Duty and Franking Charges 3.74 13.81
- Registration charges 0.19 695.79 0.73 736.87
Payments to Auditors :
- Audit fees 35.55 21.00
- Tax Audit fees 8.08 4.00
- For Other Services 6.71 5.52
- For Reimbursement of Expenses - 50.34 0.20 30.72
Conveyance & Travelling 239.25 127.72
Vehicle Expenses 9.81 6.55
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure (Refer Note 42) 211.09 420.73
Office & General Expenses 48.93 53.11
Allowance for credit losses 853.96 134.89
Miscellaneous Expenses 32.09 4.16
TOTAL _ 3,485.35 2,372.57

Note 40 - Earnings Per Equity Share

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars

| For the year ended March 31,2017 [ For the year ended March 31,2016 |

(a) Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for
Basic EPS
Add/Less: Adjustment relating to potential equity shares

Net profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders for
Diluted EPS

Weighted average no. of equity shares (in lakhs) outstanding during the

year
For Basic EPS
For Diluted EPS

(¢) Face Value per Equity Share (%)
Basic EPS (%)
Diluted EPS (%)

(d) Reconciliation between no. of shares (in lakhs) used for calculating basic and diluted EPS

No. of shares used for calculating Basic EPS
Add: Potential equity shares
No. of shares used for calculating Diluted EPS

52,294.60

52,294.60

5,292.10
5,303.51

1
9.88
9.86

5,292.10
1141

~5,303.51

39,157.67

39,157.67

5,198.25
5,304.25

1
7.53
7.38

5,198.25
106.00

5,304.25
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Note 41 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars [ As at March 31, 2017 | As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 |

(A) Contingent Liabilities
(i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 63.30 2723 27.23
(ii) Company has provided Counter Guarantee in relation to Bank Guarantee 1,090.18 1,627.98 1,779.60

to various parties which is not acknowledged in books of accounts - - -
(iii) Disputed liabilities pertaining to Service Tax with CESTAT 156.19 - -
(iv) Disputed liabilities pertaining to Sales Tax with appellate authorities 449.47 - -
(v) Income Tax demand paid recoverable against appeal filed with Income Tax 409.81 190.35 -

ITAT and Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)

(A) 2,168.95 184556 1,806.83

{B) Commitments
(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital account not provided for (net of advances) 53.78 - 25.00
(i) Uncalled liabilities on share and other investments partly paid up - 10.00 10.00
(iii) Subscription towards shares of wholly-owned subsidiary - 100.00 -
(B) 53.78 110.00 35.00
TOTAL (A + B) 2,222.73 1‘955.56 11341.83

Note :
1. The amount of liabilities, which may occur on levying of penalty and/or charges by clients for delays in execution of contracts within the time prescribed in the agreement, is unascenained.

Note 42 - Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on
corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation,
environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as per the Act.

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is ¥ 932.30 lakhs.
(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars | In Cash | Yet to be paid in Cash Total \

1) Construction / acquisition of any asset - - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 211.09 - 211.09

Note 43 - Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBNs)

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated March 31, 2017 on the details of Specified Bank Notes
(SBN) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December, 30 2016, the denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below:

(Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars SBNs* | Other d. ination notes | Total ]
Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 0.62 0.1 0.73
(+) Permitted receipts 038 13.65 14.03
(-) Permitted payments (0.38) (11.09) (11.47)
{-) Amount deposited in Banks (0.62) - (0.62)
Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016 - 2.67 2.67

* For the purposes of this clause, the term “Specified Bank Notes' shall bave the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of
Economic Affairs number S.0. 3407(E), dated the November 8, 2016.

** The Company had obtained licence for operating White Label ATMs (WLAs) from the Reserve Bank of India and is currently carrying ATM services in rural, semi-urban and urban areas in India.
The Company had cash, both SBNs and other denomination notes, as on the closing hours of November 8, 2016 in the WLA ATMs operated by the Company. Thereafter, the Company has carried out
exercise of removing such SBNs from those ATMs and depositing them into the Company’s specified bank account. The total amount of such specified bank notes deposited into bank by the Company is
¥ 777.18 lakhs. This amount has not been included above as the SBN currency was not held as cash balance with the company during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016.

Note 44 - Mouney received against Share warrants

The Company had issued 250.00 lakhs fully convertible warrants to M/s. NJD Capital Private Limited (formerly known as Vakrangee Capital Private Limited) at ¥ 100/~ per warrant in February, 2014.
The warrants issued were convertible into equal no. of equity shares having face value of ¥ 1/- with premium of T 99/- per share. Those warrants have been converted into 250.00 lakhs fully paid-up
equity shares of ¥ 1/- each in August, 2015 i.e. before the expiry of 18 months from the date of allotment of warrants. These equity shares are subject to lock-in-period of three years from date of
allotment of the equity shares or such reduced period as may be permitted under the SEBI Issue of Capital & Disclosure Requirements (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 as amended time to time.

Note 45 - Segment Reporting

The Company’s activities predominantly revolve around providing the e-governance related activites of Mission Mode Projects covered under "National e-Governance Plan” (NeGP). Considering the
nature of Company’s business and operations, there is only one reportable segment (business and / or geographical) in accordance with the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standard 108 -
“Operating Segments”. However, on the basis of delivery modes, the Company'’s business operations has been classified into two b viz. e-Governance Projects and Vakrangee Kendra.
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Revenue and identifiable operating expenses in relation to these segments are categorised based on items that are individually identifiable to those segments. Certain expenses such as depreciation, which
form a significant component of total expenses, are not specifically allocable to specific segments as the underlying assets are used interchangeably to utilise the resources optimally. The management
believes that it is not practical to provide segment disclosures relating to those costs and expenses, and accordingly these expenses are separately disclosed as 'unallocated' and adjusted against the total
income of the Company, Fixed assets or liabilities contracted have not been identified to any of the segments as the fixed assets and services are used interchangeably between segi Accordingly, no

disclosure relating to total segment assets and liabilities are made.

{Amount In  lakhs)

Particulars e-Gove'rnnnce Vakrangee Kendra Total
Projects

Revenue from Operations 142,213.87 252,680.85 394,894.72

(148,181.02) (168,680.25) (316,861.27)

Segmental Results (Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax) 39,430.98 53,455.65 92,886.63

(40,808.10) (40,244.98) (81,053.08)

Less :

Depreciation 7,295.52

{16,353.35)

Finance Costs 4,978.93

(5.620.21)

Unallocable exp (net of unallocable income) (1,357.29)

(-1203.00)

Profit Before Tax 81,969.48

(60,282.52)

Less : Tax Expense 29,674.88

(21,124.85)

Profit After Tax 52,294.60

(39,157.67)

Note : Figures in brackets pertains to previous year.

The pany identifies operating based on the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating d ker, who is responsible for allocating resources

and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the board of directors committee that makes strategic decisions.

The ing policies adopted for reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the pany. Segment revenue, seg p

P -4

identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

assets and segment liabilities have been
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Note 46 - Loans and Advances in the nature of loans given to subsidiaries and associates as required to be disclosed in the annual accounts of the company pursuant to clause 32

of the listing agreement is as under :

(i) Details of loans to subsidiaries

{Amount in T lakhs)

Name of Subsidiaries

As at March 31,2017

[ As at March 31, 2016

| AsatApril 1,205 |

- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc.

(Purpose of loan is to provide financial assisstance to the

subsidiary company)
- Vakrangee Finserve Limited

(Purpose of loan is to provide financial assisstance to the

subsidiary company)
- Vakrangee Logistic Pvt. Lid

(Purpose of loan is to provide financial assisstance to the

subsidiary company)

{i1) Details of Investment in Subsidiaries

Name of Subsidiaries

Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc.
Vakrangee Finserve Limited
Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited

Note 47 - Related Parly Details

(a) Key Management Personnel
- Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Dinesh Nandwana

Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar
Mr. Ramesh Joshi

Mr. Sunil Agarwal

Mr. Babulal Meena

Mrs. Sujata Chattopadhyay
Mr. Avinash Chandra Vyas
Mr. Thangavelu Sitharthan
Mr. Subhash Singhania

Ms. Darshi Shah

J Amount Max. Amount Amount Max. Amount | Amoun(;[ Max. Amount
4,056.95 4,056.95 3,581.68 3,581.68 2,913.76 2913.76
- 1,625.61 1,579.94 1,579.94 - 38.92
- 13.25 9.54 9.54 - -
4,056,95 5,695.81 5,171.16 5,171.16 2,913.76 2,952.68
] No. of Shares as at year-end % of shareholding |
96,000 100%
15,000,000 100%
2,000,000 100%

Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
(Chairman & Managing Director upto July 26, 2015)
Whole-Time Director

Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Nominee Director

Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. May 11, 2016)
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

(b) Relative of key management personnel and Name of the enterprises having same key management personnel and/ or their relatives as the reporting
enterprises with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year

- NJD Lacteus & Horlus Limited

(Formerly known as Vakrangee Lacteus & Horlus Limited )

- NID Capital Private Limited

(Formerly known as Vakrangee Capital Private Limited)

- Vakrangee Technologies Limited
- Mr. Manoj Nandwana
- Mr. Shelendra Nandwana

- Ms. Divya Nandwana (w.e.f. August 29, 2016)

{c) Subsidiary Companies with whom the Company has entered into transactions during the year

2016 as wholly-owned subsidiary)

. . Holding as at
Name of subsidiaries Country of incorporation March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 | April 1, 2015
Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. Phillipines 100% 100% 100%
Vakrangee Finserve Limited India 100% 100% 100%
Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited (incorporated on March 18, | India 100% - -

Related Party Transactions
- In relation to (a)

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Nature of Transactions

For the year ended March 31,2017

For the year ended March 31, 2016

Director Remuneration

- Dinesh Nandwana 171.25 66.35
- Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar 40.74 29.50
Directors’ Sitting Fees

- Ramesh Mulchand Joshi 1.00 1.20
- Sunil Agarwal 0.80 040
- Babulal Meena 1.00 1.38
- Sujata Chattopadhyay 2.00 2.50
- Avinash Chandra Vyas 0.95 0.80
- Thangavelu Sitharthan - 042
Employee Benefit Expenses

- Subhash Singhania 26.57 -

- Darshi Shah 8.16 496
ESOP Perquisites

- Darshi Shah - 037
Balance outstanding as on March 31 : NIL NIL
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- In relation to (b) {Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Nature of Transactions For the year ended March 31,2017 | For the vear ended March 31,2016

Reimbursement of Expenses

- NJD Lacteus & Hortus Limited - 1.57
- Vakrangee Technologies Limited 7.93 15.72
- Manoj Nandwana 1.42 172
- Shelendra Nandwana 0.11 1.53

Employee Benefit Expenses

- Manoj Nandwana 5.88 5.05
- Shelendra Nandwana 442 4.65
- Divya Nandwana 573 -

Conversion of Warrants into Equity Shares
- NJD Capital Private Limited - 25,000.00

Balance outstanding as on March 31 :
- Manoj Nandwana (Expenses Payable) 0.36 0.15

Note : Corporate Guarantee given by Vakrangee Technologies Limited for working capital facilities availed by the Company :
- Guarantee given to the extent of value of propenty, situated at Vakrangee House Bldg. No. 124, Marol Co-Op. Industrial Estate Ltd., Marol, Andheri (E), Mumbai
(March 31, 2016 : Corporate guarantee given for entire working capital facilities)

- In relation to (c) {Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Nature of Transactions For the year ended March 31,2017 [ For the year ended March 31, 2016

Purchase of goods and services
- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited 30.71 -

Payment for goods and services
- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited 30.71 -

Reslisation from debtors

- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. - 57.64
Loans granted
- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. 0.62 -
- Vakrangee Finserve Limited 16.75 2,053.50
- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited 3043 -

Interest received on loan granted

- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. 571.72 485.11
- Vakrangee Finserve Limited 199.88 297
- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited 041 -

Loan recelved back
- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. - -
- Vakrangee Finserve Limited 1,796.57 476.53
- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited 4037 -

Investments in Subsidiaries
- Vakrangee Finserve Limited 1,475.00 -
- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited 200.00 -

Balance Outstanding as on March 31 :

- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. (Loans Receivable, including 4,056.95 3,581.67
foreign exchange fluctuation as at year end)

- Vakrangee Finserve Limited (Loans Receivable) - 1,579.94

- Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited (Loans Receivable) - 9.54
- Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. (Trade Receivables; including 2,536.51 2,594.97
foreign exchange f1 ion as af year end)

Note 48 - Employee Benefit Obligations

(i) Leave obligations

The leave obligations cover the Company’s liability for eamed leave.

The amount of provision of ¥ 101.06 lakhs (March 31, 2016 - ¥ 58.95 lakhs) is presented as current and non-current, since the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for any of these obligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employee to take the full amount of accrued leave or require payment within the
next 12 months.

(ii) Gratuity (post-employment benefits)
The Company provides for gratuity to employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in continuous service for a period of S years are eligible for gratuity.
The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employces last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years

of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised/approved funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a
target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

The Company also has ceratin defined benefit obligations. Contributions are made to provident fud in India for employees at the specified rate of basic salary as per regulations. The
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the govemment. The obligations of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual
nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is ¥ 134.78 lakhs (March 31, 2016 - ¥ 105.63 lakhs).
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Gratuity

The following table sets out the amount recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligations over the year are as follows:

(Amount in T lakhs)

Particulars Present value of Fair value of Net amount
obligation Plan assets
01-Apr-15 118.62 (67.42) 51.20
Current Service cost 41.38 - 41.38
Interest expense/(income) 9.49 (4.12) 5.37
Total recognised in profit or loss 50.87 (4.12) 46.75
Remeasurements
Experience (gains)losses (8.53) - (8.53)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income _(8.53) - (8.53)
Employer contributions - - -
Benefit payments (15.52) 15.52 -
31-Mar-16 145.44 (56.02) 89.42
{Amount in 2 lakhs)
Partlculars Preseljl v;'llue of Fair value of Net amount
obligation Plan assets
01-Apr-16 145.44 (56.02) 89.41
Current Service cost 60.29 - 60.29
Interest expense/(income) 10.91 (4.20) 6.71
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 71,20 (4.20) 67.00
Remeasurements
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest - (0.25) (0.25)
(Gain)/loss from change in financiat assumptions 9.38 - 9.38
Experience (gains)losses (27.38) - (27.38)
Total amount vecognised in other comprehensive income {18.00) (0.25) (18.25)
Employer contributions - - -
Benefit payments (1.05) 1.05 -
31-Mar-17 197.59 (59.43) 138.16
The net liability disclosed above relates to funded plans are as follows
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Present value of funded obligations 197.59 145.44 118.62
Fair value of plan assets (59.43) (56.02) (67.42)
Deficit/(Surplus) of gratuity plan 138.16 89.42 51.20
Significant estimates- actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows
[ 31-Mar17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
Discount rate 7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Expected rate of return 7.50% 8.00% 8.00%
Mortality Table IALM 2006-08 1ALM 2006-08 TALM 2006-08
Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal ptions is:
. . Impact on defined benefit obligation
. Change in assumption - "
Particulars Increase in assumption
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Discount rate 1% 1% Decrease by 13% 12%
Salary growth rate 1% 1% Increase by 16% 14%
Withdrawal rate 1% 1% Increase by 3% 4%
. Change in Impact on defined benefit nbligntiun-
Particulars | Decrease in assumption
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Discount rate 1% 1% Increase by 16% 14%
Salary growth rate 1% 1% Decrease by 13% 12%
Withdrawal rate 1% 1% Decrease by 4% 5%
The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other p In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the

assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the projectcd unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance

sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

*The major categories of plans assets are as follows :

In Percentage %
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Equily instruments N 8.91
Debt instruments 89.43 85.81
Government bonds 63.10 54.63
Corporate bonds/debentures 26.33 31.18
Asset backed securities 0.03 0.04
Cash and cash equivalents 2.83 5.24
Total 100.00 100.00
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Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

Investment risk The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. Most of the plan asset investment
is in fixed income securities with high grades and in government securites which are subject to interest rate risk. A

Interest risk A decrease in the market yeilds in the government bond will increase the plan liability, however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the returnt on the plan's debt i
Longevity risk The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by

reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and afier employment. An increase in
the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by
reference to the future salaries of plan paniicipants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will
increase the plan's liability.

Maturity profile of gratuity liability and Employer contribution

Expected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2018 are ¥ 81.32 lakhs (as at March 31, 2017 : ¥ 57.86 lakhs).

The weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) of the defined benefit obligation is 21 years (2016~ 20 years). The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted gratuity is as
follows :

Amount in ¥
Particulars lakhs
Less than one year 5.00
Between [-2 years 4.64
Between 2-5 years 37.52
Over 5 years 255.19
Total 302.35

Note 49 - Share based payments

The company has formulated Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2008 (ESOP Scheme) which was approved by the members/shareholders of the Company at their annual general meeling
held on 23 September, 2008, as modified on 10 January, 2011 and 1 June, 2012 annual report general meeting. Further the company has formulated the new “ESOP Scheme 2014”
approved by the members of the company through postal ballot on 23rd May, 2014. The Employee Option Plan is designed to provide incentives to all the existing employees serving
with the Company. Under the plan, employees are granted options which vest proportionately from 2 — 6 years from the grant date which includes lock in period.

Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of 4 years.

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights. When exercisable, each option is convertible into one equity share. The exercise price of
the options is a price which is determined at 50% of market price of the scrip of the company (on the highest traded Stock Exchange) or at any other price as decided by the Nomination
and R ion and C ion Ci i

Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan:

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulars Av?rnge exercise Number of Av?rnge exercise .
price per share . price per share [Number of options
option (X) options option (3)

Opening balance 90.09 20,48,530 37.55 34,46,260
Granted during the year - - 113.00 9,67,200
Exercised during the year 24395 36,250 108.06 7,13,930
Forfeited during the year 95.01 4,49,505 15.29 16,51,000
Expired during the year - - - N
Closing Balance 90.29 15,62,775 90.09 20,48,530
Vested and excercisable 110.77 698,375 57.69 2,01,625

The weighted average share priee at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2017 was ¥ 243.95 (March 31, 2016 : ¥ 108.06).
No options expired during the periods in the above tables.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following expiry date and exercise prices:

. . . Share options Share options Share options
Grant date Expiry date Exercise price (T) 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 01-Apr-15
30-07-2009 29-07-2016 61.90 - 97,020 106,020
30-12-2009 29-12-2016 67.85 - - -
18-05-2010 17-05-2017 146.50 - 100,000 100,000
24-11-2010 23-11-2017 150.00 - - -
12-08-2011 11-08-2018 150.00 - 18,660 171,340
20-07-2012 19-07-2021 20.00 27,875 69,250 149,000
20-07-2012 19-07-2021 10.00 - - 2,000,000
26-11-2014 26-11-2023 64.70 682,400 821,100 919,900
11-03-2016 10-03-2025 113.08 852,500 942,500 -
Total 1,562,775 2,048,530 3,446,260

Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant date of options granted during the year ended March 31, 2017 was NIL per option (March 31, 2016 : ¥ 152.51). The fair value at grant date is determined using
the Black Scholes Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the
expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The mode! inputs for options granted during the year ended March 31, 2017 included:

a) Options are granted for no consideration and vest upon completion of service for a period of two years. Vested options are exercisable for a period of two years afier vesting,
b) Exercise price : ¥ NIL (March 31, 2016 — ¥113.08)

<) Grant date : NIL (March 31, 2016 — March 11, 2016)

d) Expiry date  : NIL (March 31, 2016 ~ March 10, 2025)

¢) Share price at grant date : T NIL (March 31, 2016 - ¥ 224.50)
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f) Expected price volatility of the company’s shares : NIL (March 31, 2016 - 42.50%)
g) Expected dividend yield : NIL (March 31, 2016 - 0.40%)
h) Risk free interest rate  : NIL (March 31, 2016 - 7.60%)

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
information.

b) Expense arising from share based payment transactions

Total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognized in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows.

(Amount in T lakhs)
[Particulars [ March 31,2017 | March 31,2016 |
|Employee Option Plan | 326.74 | (79.18)]

Note 50 - Financial Risk Management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The below note explains the sources of risk which the entily is exposed to and how the entity manages

the risk :
Exposure arising from Risk Measurement Manag t
Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, derivative financial | Credit Risk Aging analysis Diversification of bank deposits,
instruments, financial assets meaasured at amortised cost. Credit ratings credit limits and letters of credit
Borrowings and other liabilities Liquidity Risk Rolling cash flow forecasts Availibility of committed credit lines
and borrowing facilities

Future commercial transactions. Recognised financial assets and | Market Risk - Cash flow forecasting Forwarded foreign exchange
liabilities not d inated in Indian Rupee (INR) foreign exchange |Sensitivity analysis contracts
Long-Term borrowings at variable rates Market Risk - Sensitivity analysis Interest rate swaps

interest rate
Investments in equity securities Market Risk - Sensitivity analysis Portfolio diversification

security prices

Note 51 - Income Taxes

(a) A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before income laxes is summarized below:
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars | For the year ended March 31, 2017 | For the year ended March 31, 2016 |

Profit before income taxes 81,969.48 60,282.52

Enacted tax rates in India 34.61% 34.61%

Computed expected tax expense 28,369.64 20,863.78

Effect of non-deductible expenses 1,305.55 261.07

Others 031 -

Income Tax expense 29,674.88 21,124.85

(b) The following table provides the details of income tax liabilities and income tax assets as of March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015
(Amount in X

Particulars | As at March 31, 2017 | As at March 31,2016 | As at April 1, 2015
Current Income Tax Liabilities 2,594.93 642.66 5,504.69
Income Tax Assets 487.18 209.43 131
Net current income tax liabilities / (assets) at the end 2,107.75 433.23 5,503.38

The gross movement in the current income tax liability / (asset) for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016 is as follows:
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

| Particulars | For the year ended March 31, 2017 | For the year ended March 31, 2016 |
Net current income tax liability / (asset) at the beginning 433.23 5,503.38
Income Tax paid (29,279.75) (29,145.06)
Current Income Tax expense 30,954.26 24,074.91
Net current income tax liability / (asset) at the end 2,107.74 433.23

(c) The gross movement in the deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, are as follows:

Amount in ¥ [akhs
I Particulars [ For the year ended March 31, 2017 [ For the year ended March 31,2016

Net deferred income tax liability at the beginning 1,288.19 4,258.20
Movements relating to temporary differences (1,279.38) (2,950.06)
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income (8 81) (19.95)
Net deferred income tax liability at the end (0.00) 1,288.19

The timing differences arising as at year-end are deferred tax assets. There are no items for which there is deferred tax liability as at year-end. Hence, on the basis of reasonable certainty,
such deferred tax assets have not been recognised and carried forward.

Note 52 - Previous year / period figures

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and polices to the extent applicable. The Company has adopted Ind AS on April 1, 2016 with the transition date as April 1, 2015,
and adoption was carricd out in accordance with Ind-AS 101 - First ime adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The previous period's figurcs have been regrouped or rearranged
wherever necessary.
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